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UNITED STATES.ENY 113\ NMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
a "4 REGION S

RL"_ ;xth ’;‘1 _ )
LT - ™1 Docket No. CAA-05-2015-0029

b-"'

In the Matter of:

TR

Bluff City Minerals U roveoue,.- /[ Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
Alton, Tllinois, }‘\ F"D?'Ecr}‘%}ifé}}éﬁ? Under Section 113(d) of the Clear Air Act,
N ’ 2 U.S.C. § 7413(d)
. A mimis B ) A2US.C§°
Respondent. \‘-‘“5‘?‘ )
' )

Consent Agreement and Final Order

Preliminary Statement

]. This 1s an administrative action commenced and concluded under Sccdom 113(d)
of the Clean Air Act (CAA or the Act), 42 US.C. 5 7413(d), and qecuors 22.i(2)(2), 22.13(h)
and 22.18(b)(2) and (3)-of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Gﬁvemmg the Administrative
Assessment of Civil Penaities and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits
{Consolidated Rules), as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

2. Complainant 15 the Director of the Air and Radiation Division,
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 3.

3. Respondent is Bluff City Minerals, 2 corporation doing business in iilinois.

4. Where the parties agree t’d settle one or more causes of action before the ﬁliné of
a complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
issuance of a conseni agreement and finat order (CAFO). 40 C.FR. § 22.13(b).

5. The parties agree that semling this ;action without the filing of a complaint o5 the
adjudication of any 1ssuz of faii or law is In their interes: and in the public inisrzst.

&, Responden: consents w the assessment of the civil penalty spsciﬁed m this CAFO

and 10 the temmns of this CAFO.



Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits
nor denies the factual allegations in this CAFO.

8. Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.15(c), any right to contest the allegations in this CAFO and its right to appeal this CAFO. .

Statutorv and Regulatorv Background

5. Section 108(a)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7408(a)(1). requires the Administrator
to publish, and from time to timne revise, a list ;thch includes each air pollutant: (A) emissions of
which, in the Administrator’s judgment, cause or contribute to air polfution which may
reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health or welfare; (B) the presence of which in the
ambient air results from numerous or di\’er.se mobile or statonary sources; and (C) for which air
quality criteria had not been issued before the date of enactinent of the CAA of 1970, but for
which the Administrator plans to issue air quality criteria under this section.

10. Section 108(a)(2) of the Act, 420US8C. ¢ 7_’408(21)(2), requires the Administrator
to 1ssue air quality criteria for an air pollutant aﬂer it is included 1n the list required by
Section 108(a)(1).

11. ' Sectiqn 109 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7409, requires the Administrator to
promulgate national primary and secondary ambient air quality standards (NAAQS) requisite 10
protect the public health and welfare.

12. Section 110 of the Act, 42 US.C. & 7410, fequircs each state to adopt and submit
to the Administrator for approval é state implementation pian (SIP) that pravides for the
attasinmem and maintenance of the NAAQS.

13, The Administrator approved llinois Poliution Control Board (IPCB) Rule 203(f)
as part of the Illinois State lmplcmematiop Plan {(IL SIP) on February 21, 1980 with an effective

date of Februarv 21, 1980, as amended on April 26, 1982, with an effsctive date of May 26,
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1982. 45 Fed. Reg. 11472, 11493, as amended, 47 Fed. Reg. 17814, 17816.

14, The Administrator approved 35 [llinots Administrative Code (LAC) § 211.4970 as

part of the L, SIP on January 26, 1996, with an effective date of March 26, 1996.
61 Fed. Reg. 2423, 2427.

_ 15. The Administrator 3ppr_ovcd 351AC § 212.509 as part of the IL STP on July 14,
1999, with an effective date of September 13, 1999, 64 Fed. Reg. 37847, 37851,

- 16. The Administrator approved Illinois’ Federally Enforceable State Operating
Permit Program as part of the IL SIP on December 17, 1992, with an effective date of
February 16, 1993. 57 ch. Reg. 59928.

17.  The Administrator granted final approval of the Iilinois Title V Permit Program
on December 4, 2001, with an effective date of November 30 2001. 66 Fed. Reg. 62946.

18. Section 111(b)(1)(A) of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7411(b)(1)(A), requires the
Adminiswator to publish, and from time to time rc\fise; a list of qétegories of staticnary sources
which in the Admintstrators judgment cause, or contribute significantly to, air pollution which
may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health or welfare.

9. Section lll(b)‘(l)(B) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(b)(1)(B), requires the
Administrator to prepose and promulgate regulations establishing federal standards of
performance for new sources within the listed stationary source categories.

20.  The Administrator published a list of source categories in accordance with
Section 111 of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7411, on January 8, 1982, 47 Fed. Reg, 951
(codified at 40 C.F.R. § 60.16).

21 ;i”nc prioritized list of source .carf:gorics includes Non-Metallic Mineral Processing ‘
(pricrity 13). 40 C.F.R. § 60.16.

22 The Administraior promulgated the General Provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 60,

Subpart A oo December 23, 1971. 36 Fed. Reg. 24877 (codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 60,
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Subpart A).

23, The Admil;listrator promulgated Standards of Performance for Nonmetallic
Mineral Processing Plants on August 1, 1985, as amended April 28, 2009. 50 Fed. Reg. 31328,
as amended, 74 Fed. Reg. 19309.

24, Section ] 13(a)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(1), states that whenever, on thé
basis of any information available to the Administrator, the Administrator finds that any person
has violated or is in violation of any requirement or prohibition of an applicable irnplementation
plan or permit, the Administrator shall notify the person and the State in which the plan applies
of such finding. Atany nme after t}.w expiration of 30 days.following the date on which suc-h
notice of a violation is issued, the Administrator may, (A} issue an order requiring such person to
comply with the requirements or prchibitions of such plah or permnit, (B) issue an administrative
penalty order, or (C) bring a civil action in accordance with Section 113(b) of the Act,

42 US.C. § 7413(b). _

25, Section 113(a)(3) oftﬁc Act, 42 11.5.C. § 7413(a)(3), states that whenever, on the
basis of any information available to the Administrator, the A&miniﬂrator finds thét any perscn
has violated, or is in violation of, any other requireinent or prohib-ition of this subchapter,
section 7603 of this title, subchapter IV-A, 5u.bchaptcr V, or subchapter V1 of this chapter,
including but not limited to, a requirement or prohibition of any rule, plan, order, waiver, or
permit promulgated, 1ssued or apﬁmved under those provisions or subchapters . . . the
Admimistrator may (A) issue an administrative penzlty order, (B) issue an order requiring such
person to comply with such requirement or prohibition, {C) bring a civil action, or (D) request
the Attorney Gensral to commence 2 criminal action. |

- 26. The Admimistrator promulgated 40 C.FR. § 52.23 on Sepiember 18, 1974, as

L]

armended, June 28, 1989. 39 Fed Reg. 33512, as amended, 34 Fed. Reg. 27274, 2728

27. 40 C.F R. § 52.23 states that failure to comply with any provisions of this pas,
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with any approved regulatory provision of a State implementation plan, or with any permit

limitation or condition contained within an operating permit issued under an EPA-approved

program. . . shall render the person. . . so failing to comply in violation of a thuifement of an

~ applicable implementation plan and subject to enforcement action under Section 113 of the

CAA, 42 US.C. §7413.

28, The IL SiP requirements relevant to this CAFO are as follows:

a.

- IPCB Rule 203(f)(1) {35 1AC § 212.301] states that no person shall cause

‘or allow the emissions of fugitive particulate matter from any process,

including any material handling or storage activity, that is visible by an
observer looking generally toward the zenith at a point beyond the

property line of the emission source.

. IPCB Rule 203()(3)(C) [35 IAC & 212.306] states that all normal traffic

pattern aceess areas surrounding storage piles and all normal waffic pattern
roads and parking facilities which are ]dcated on mining or manufacturing
property shall be paved or treated with water, oils, or chemical dust
suppressants. All paved areas shall be cleaned on a regular basis. All
areas treated with water, oils, of chemical dust suppressants shall have the
treatment applied on a regular basis, as needed, in accordance with the
operating pregramn required by rule 203(H)(3)(T).

35 IAC § 212.309 states that the emission units described in Sections
212.304 through 212 308 and Section 212316 of this Subpart shall be
opzrated under the provisions of an operating program. Such operating
program shall be designed to significantly reduce fugitive particulate
Toatier .emissions,

IPCB Rule 203(5)(2)(F) [35 IAC § 212.310(e)-(g)] establishes the
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minimurn requirements of the operating program which includes: a
detailed description of the best management pra?:tices utilized to achieve
comptliance with this Subpart, including an engineering specification of
particulate collection cqui.pn.lcnt, application systems for water, oil,
chemicals, and dust suppressants utilized and equivalent methods utilized;
estimated frequency of application of dust suppressants by location of
materials; and such other information as may be necessary tor facilitate the
Agency’s review of the operating program.

e. 35TAC §211.4970 acfmcs “Potential to Emit” a5 the maximum capacity
of a stationary source to emit any air pollutanf under its physical and
operational design. Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity
of a source o emit an air pollutant, including air poliution control
equipment and restriction on hours of operation or on a type or amount of
material combusted, stored, or processed, shall be treated as part of its
design if the limitation is federally enforceable.

29. Section 302(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), states that after the effective date
of any permit program approved or promulgated under this title, it shall be unlawful for any
~ person o violatc. any rcqui}emcnt of a permit issued under this title, or to operate an affected
source, a major source, any other source subject to standards or regﬁ]ations under Section 111 or
112,42 U0S5.C. §§ 7411 or 7412, except in compliance with a permit issued by a permitting
authority under this witle.

30, Secnon SOB(a) of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7661 b{a) states that any source specified in
section 502(a) shall become subjecl 10 a permit program, and required to have a permit, on the
later of the effective dare of a permit program or the date such source becomes subject ;to

section 502(z), 42 U.S.C. § 7661 2a{a).



31.  Section 503(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661b(c) states that any person required to
have a permit shall, nc-)I later than 12 months after the date on which the source becomes subject
to a permit program approved or promulgated under this title, submit to the permitting authority
a compliance plan and an application for a permit signed by a rcsponsib]‘e official.

32. Section 504(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 76610{.3) states that each permit issued
- under this ttle shall include enforceable emission limitations and standards, a schedule of
compliance, a requirement that the permitiee submit Llo the permitting authority, no less often
- than every 6 months, the results of any required monitoring, and such other conditions as are
necessary to assure comg;liance with applicable requirements of this Act, including the
requirements of the applicable implementation plan.

33, The requirements of the General Provisions to 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart A and
40 C.F.R. Pan 6-02 Subpart OO0 reievant 1o this CAFO are as follows:

a. 40 C.F.R. § 60.7(a)(3) requires any owner or operator subj-ect to the
provisions of this part to fwnish to the Administrator a netification of the
7 actual date of initial startup of an affected facility postrnarked within 13
days after such date.
b. 40 C.F.R. § 60.7(a){4) requires a notificarion of any physical or
operational change.tp an existing facility which may increase the emission
‘raxe of any air pollutant‘m which 2 standard applies. This notice must be
pesunarked 60 days or as soon as practicable before the change @s
commenced and Shz.*lll include information describing the precise nature of
the change, present and propesed ernission conirol sysiems, productive
capacity of the faciiry before and after the change, and the sxp%:ctcd

completion date of the change.
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40 C.F.R. § 60.11(b) requires compliance with opacity standards in this
part shall be determined by conducting observations in accordance with
Method 9 in Appendix A to this part.

40 C.F.R. § 60.11(d) requires at all times, inchuding periods of startup,
shutdown, and malfunction owners and operators shall, 1o the extent

practicable, maintain and operate any affected facility including associated

air pollution control equipment in a manner consistent with good air

pollution control practice for minimizing ernissions.,

40 C.F.R. § 60.11{e)(1) requires, for purposes of demonstrating initial
compliance, that opacity observations be conducted within 60 days after
achieving the maximum production rate at which the affected facility will

be operated but no later than 180 days after initial startup of the facility.

BCM has one or more affected {acilities identified at 40 C.F.R.

§ 60.670(a)(1).

BCM has one or more aff.;,-cted facilities that commenced construction.
madification, §r reconstruction afier August 31, 1983.

40 C.F.R. § 60.670(e).

BCM has onc or more affected facilities that commenced construction,

~ modification, or reconstruction after April 22, 2008.

40 C.F.R. § 60.670(f) states that Table ! of this Subpart specifies the
provisions of Subpart A of this Part 60 that apply to affected facilities with
certain excepdons.

40 C.FR. § 60.672(b) requires affected facilities to meet the fugitive



emission limits and comp]ia;'lcc requircmc.nts in Table 3 of this Subpart
within 60 days after achieving the maximum productfon rate at which the
‘ affected fability will be operated, but not later than 180 days after initial
startup as required under 40 CFR. §60.11.
40CFR § 60.675(¢c)(1) states, in determining compliance with the
partic:‘;llate matter standards in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.672(b) or 60.672{c)(1), the
owner or operator shall use Method 9 of Appendix A-4 of this part and the
procedures in 40 C.F.R. § 60.11. |
40 C.FR. § 60.676(i)(1)} requires a notification of tilc actual date of wmnitial
startup of each aﬁ"cctt::d facilify to be submitted to the Administrator. The
potification shall be postmarked within 15 davs after such date and shall
inclu;ic a description of each affected facilitv, equipment manufacturer,
and serial number of the equipment, if available. .
40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart OOQ, Table ] states that 40 C.F.R. § 60.7
applies to Subpart QQQ except the requirernent to submat a notification
of the date construction commenced or reconstruction commenced.
40 C.FR. Part 60, Subpart O0Q, Table | states that 40 CF.R. § 60.11
. applies except that Me‘thod 9 observation is reduced from 3 hours to 30
minutes,
40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpanl 000, Tabie 3 establishes fugitive emission
limitatior:s for affected Tacilities ithat commenced co;:tstmction,
modification. or reo;)nstmction afier Angust 31, 1983, but before

April 22, 2008, 2s well 2s affected facilines that commense consguction,



reconstruction, or modcification afier April 22, 2008.

p- 40 C.F.R. Part 60,ASubpa11 000, Table 3 requires the owner or operatot
of affected facilities that commence construction, modification, or
reconstruction on or after April 22, 2008, demonstrate compliance with
applicable fugitive emission limitations by conducting an initial
performance test according to 40 C.F.R. § 60.11 of this part and
40 CF.R. § 60.675 of this subpart.

34, Section 1 ]3(3)(3_) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(3), states whenever, on the

- basis of any information available to the Administrator of EPA, the Administrator finds that any
person has violated or Is in violation of any requirement or prohibition of this subchapter, the |
Administrator may 15sue a penalty order in accordance with subsection (d). This authority has
been dclcgawd.to the Regional Administrator. EPA Delegation 7-6-A, 8/9/94; Region 5
Delegation 7-6-4, 2/4/00.

35,  The Administrator of EPA (the Administrator) may assess a civil penalty of up to
$37,500 per day of violation up io a tofal of $295,000 for viclations that occm;red after January
12, 2009 through December 6, 2013 under Section 113{d)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 7413(d)(1), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19. The Civil Moetary Inflation Adjustment Rule, 78 Fed.
Reg. 66643 (November 6, 2013), retains the Stafnutory Maximum Penalty at $37,500 per day for
each violation, but ir;cre,ases the total Statutory Maximum Penalty addressed through an
Admin_istrazive action to $320,000 for v;oiations occurring after December 6, 2013,

36. Section 31} _}imits the Adminisifator’s authority to matters where the first
alleged daye of violation occurred no mose than 12 months prior to mitaton of the

administrative action, except where the Admmistrator and the Azorney General of ths Upiied

10



States jointly determine that a matter involving a longer period of violation is appropriate for an
administrative penalty action. |

37. The Administrator and the Attorney General of the United States, each through
their respective delegates, have determined jointly that an’administrative penalty acujon is

appropriate for the period of violations alleged in this CAFO.

Factnal Allegations and Alleged Violations

38, Respondent 0\;\?“8 and operates an agéregate processing plant at 4007 College
'Avenue, Alton, Hlinois (Facility).

39. .. The Facility is 2 stationary source as defined in the Ulinois SIP, 40 C.F.R. § 60.2
and the CAA.

40, The Facility is a nonmetatiic mineral processing facility as that term is defined
at 40 CFR. § 60.671.

41, ‘The Facility has one or more affected sources as that term is defined at 40 C.F.R
§ 60.670{a)(1).

41, The following table identifies affected sources that the Facility commenced
~ construction, modiﬁéation, or_reconsmjction on or after August 31, 1983, based on a letter dated
Ny Augil.zst 3, 2012, from Fred Weber Inc. {the parent company of Bluff City Minerals] to Mr.

David Bloomberg at the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.

Unit Number | Year
20231t 1993
| 292346 2005
Belt 13.3 2006
Beit 13 (292306) 1993
292308 1963 .
292306 2011 (Modified)
202408 1995
292310 1993
Belt O8-2 2003 _}

11



292202 1995
292507 2011
292505 : 1997 and 2011 (Modified)
292512 1597
292513 1997
292400 : : 2000
292518 ' 2002
292517 1997
292538 1997
292522 1997
202527 - 1997
292519 1997
292526 - 11997
292524 1997
292523 1997
292529 1997
292514 2011
Lime stacker belt 2002
292814 2005
292545 : 2003
202414 2005
Belt 6A 2012
291219 2011
292103 2007
Belt 3 2011
292408 1995

43.  The Facility commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification of the
following equipment after April 22, 2008: 292505, 292506, 292507, 292514, 291219, Belt 3,
and Belt 6A. |

44, The Facility has a Lifetime General Operating Permit for Aggregéte Processtog
P-lant thar was issued September 28, 2000.

45..  The Facility does not have a Federally Enforceable Staie Operaiing Permit issued
in accordance with an approved Title V permitting program.

44.  The Facility does not bave a Tide V permit issusd in accordance with an approved

Titie V permitting program.
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47, The Facilitv has a fugitive dust operation program vdatcd January 16, 2001 (at
that time the facility was Mississippi Lime Company).

48.  The January 16, 2001 fugitive dust of_?eration program states, among other things:

4. Additional water is added to the stone after crushing and sizing.

b. The wet suppression systems assure that 90% plus centrol is provided
during the growth of the storage piles.

c. Asphalt roadways throughout the plant and leading to R'o;lte 140 are
pfessure waghed.

d. Heavily wavelled unpa{'cd, off road areas around the stockpiles where
customer wucks are loaded are sprayed down during dry conditions to
reduce the generation of fugitive dust.

49. . EPA conducted an inspsction at the Facility on March 12, 2014,

50. lEPA informed the Facility during the close out meeting on March 12, 2014, of
some general areas of concern including maintenance practices and that an overall facility clean-
up plan may be needed.

51. The Facility submitted 2 letter dated Aprii 9, 2014 to Mr. David Bloomberg of the
Hlinc1s Environmenial Protection Agency.

52 The Apnl 9, 2014 letter stated Fred Weber, Inc. is currently undergeing an
internal audn at the Bluff City Mineral.s Acquisition, LLC — Alion Mines, initizted bv a site visit
made by EPA‘on March 12, 2014,

53.  The April 9, 2014 leter states‘resuits of the audit to date indicare that excesdances

have occurred at the site, in viclanion of psrmit conditions.



54, The April‘-9, 2014 letter also lists potential violations of the Lifetime General
Operating Permit for Aggregate Processing Plant, actions taken, to date, to minimize fugitive
emissions from sources at the site, recordkeeping practices, and establishment of a checks and
balances system to assure ongoing comphiance with permit terms and conditions.

53. : The April 9, 2014 letter identifies, among others, the following:

a, During EPA site visit, it was disooverea that the VSI#! crusher,
conveyor belt 13, pep screen, and two screen discharge conveyors
appeareci to be exhibiting opacity greater than 10 percent (although a
formal Method 9 assessment was not conducted).

b. Following EPA’s site visit; it was discovered that the baghouse booster
fan that facilitates the draw of emissions from the VSI#1 crusher o the
baghouse was not functioning properly.

c. The surface moisture content of the aggregate as crushed was not being
documented by either weekly records of moisture content sampling results
or weekly records of water spray system inspections.

d. " EPA noted, during thcif site visit, that visible emissiogs crossed the
property boundary on March 10™..

e. Issués related to water sprays and the bz.ighouse may be considered a
violation of the Lifetime Operating Permits requiring all equiproent at the
source covtrc:& under the permit to be maimained in such 2 manner that
the performance of such equipment shall not cavse a violation of the
[filinois] Environmental Protection Act or regulations promulgated

thereunder.



56, The facility violated the Illino1s State Implementation Plan, 40 C.F.R. Part 60,

Subpart 00O, and the CAA as follows:

a.

Particulate matier crossed the facility’s property line on at least two
occasions (March 10, 2014 and May 21, 2014) in violation of |

IPCB Ruije 203(f)(1) [35 IAC § 212.301] of the IL SIP and the CAA.
Visible emissiéns arose from stock piles and roadways within the facility
and leading out of the facility without the sufficient application of water or
other dust suppression technigues on at least three separaie occasions
(March 10, 2014, March 12, 2014, and May 21, 2014) in violation of
IPCB Rule 203(f)(3)(C) (35 IAC § 212.306] of the IL SIP, 35 IAC

§ 212.309 of the [L SIP, and the CAA.

Fugitive dust emissions arose from storage piles, affected facilities, and
spills throughout the process area without the sufficient application of
water or other dust suppression techniques to minimize fﬁgitive dust
emissions in vioiation of 40 C.F.R. § 60.11(d), 40 C.F.R. § 60.670(NH(1),
40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart 00O, Table 1, and the CAA.

The Facility submitied certuin notifications of the actual date of initial
startup of affected facilines t.hat were postmarked more than 13 days afier
such date in violation of 40 CF.R. § 60.7{(a)}3). 40 C.FR. § 60.670{f)(1},
40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart 000, Tabie .l . and the CA%A.

The Facility failed to submii some notifications of the actual date of initial
startup of affecied facm{ies in violaton of 40 CF.R. § 60.7(a)3),

40 CFR. § 60.670(f)(1), 40 CF R. Par: 60, Subpart 000, Table 1, and



the CA.A.'

f. The Facility failed to submit notifications of physical or operétiOnal
changes to an existing facility which may increase the emissi.on rate of any
pollutant to Whilch a stapdard applies that were postmarked within 60 days
or as soon as practicable b;afore the cﬁange Is commenced in violation of
40 C..F.R § 60.7(a)4), 40 C.E.R. § 60.670(f)(1), 40 C.F.R. Part 60,
Subpart Q0O, Table 1, and the CAA.

g. The Facility failed to conduct some initial testing to demonstrate
compliance with the fugitive emission particulate matter standards within -
60 days after achieving the maximum prc;duction 1;ate at which the
dffected facility will be operated, but not later than 180 days afier initial
startup in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 60.11(e)(1), 40 C.ER. § 60.675((:)(1 )2
40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart OO0, Table 3, and the CAA.

h. The Facility neither applied for and obtained a Title V permit nor appli.ed
for and obtained a Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit (FESOP)
when its potential emissions (considering federally enforceable
]imitations) are greater than 100 tons per yea.r in violation of the IL SIP
and the CAA.

$7.  EPA issued 2 Notee of Violation and Fiﬁding of Violation (NOV/FOV) 1o the
Pacilitv on August 7, 2014, | '
Civil Penaltv
58.  Based on analysis of the faciors spacified in Section 113(e) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7413(e), the facts of this case and Bluff City Minerals’ codpe.ratiom efforts 1o



promptly remm' to compliance, and agreement to perform a supplemental ;n\'ironmental project,
Complainant has dctenﬁined that an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action 15 $161,315.
Bluff City Minerals will resolve this civil penalty by paying a cash civil penalty amount of
$40,329 and mitigating the remaining portion of the pene.thy by completing a supplementat
environmental project costing Bluff City Minerals at least $165,098. |

39. Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay a
$40,329 civil penalty by sending a céshjer’s or certified check, payable to “Treasurer, United
States of America,” to:

- U.S.EPA
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St Louws, Misseurl 63197-9000

For checks sent by express mail (pon-U.S. Postal Service which won’t deliver mail to P.O.
Boxes) please use the following address instead:

U.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA Fines and Penzlties
1005 Convention Plaza -
Mail Station SL-MQ-CZ-GL
St. Louis, Missouri 63101

The check must note Respondent’s name and the docket number of this CAFO.
60.  Respondent must send a notice of payvment that states Respondent’s name and the
docket number of this CAFO to EPA at the following addresses when it pays the penalty:
Ann: Compliance Tracker (AE-17T)
" Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch
Adr and Radiation Division '
ULS. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5

77-'W. Jackson Bou]e;\'a%d
Chicago, [limois 60604
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Robert H. Smith (C-14))

Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 W. Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, lllinois 60604

Regional Hearing Clerk (E-195)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 W. Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinots 60604

61.  This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

62.  1f Respondent does not timely pay the civil penalty or any stipulated penalties due
under paragraph 77, below, EPA may request the Attorney General of the United States to bring
an action to collect any unpaid portion of the pznalty with interest, nonpayment penalties and the
United States enforcement expenses {or the collection action under Section 113(d)(5) of the
CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7415(d)(3). The validity, amnount and appropriateness of the civil penalty are
nof reviewable in a collection action.

63. Respondent must pay the follewing on any amount overdue under this CAFO.
Interest will accrue on any overdue amount from the date payment was due at a rate established
by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6621(2)(2). Respondent must pay the
United States enforcement expenses, including but not limited 1o atiomeys fees and costs
incurred by the United States for collection proceedings. In addition, Respondent must pay a
quarterly nonpayment penalty each quarter during which the assessed penalry is overdue. This
nonpayment penalty will be 10 percent of the aggregate amount of the outstanding penalties and
nonpavment penalticé accrued from the be@nning of the quarter. 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d){(5).

Supplemental Environment Project

64.  Respondent must complete a supplemental environmental project (SEP) designed

to proteci the environment by installing and operating a new reverse air dust collector desiened
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to achieve at Jeast 99 percent removal efficiency for particulate matter greater than or equal to

0.5 microns in diameter. -

65.  Respondent must complete this SEP as follows:

d.

4

Install a new reverse a.ir dust collector to further reduce particulate r'natter
emissions from the facility’s VSI Crusher No. 291219 (Jocated in the cone
buitding), the Cone Feed Bin #3,_and tﬁe conveyor transfer point from
Conveyor #4 to Conveyor #5.

Install, operate, and maintain-the new dpst c;ollector by no later than.
December 31, ZOiS. The dust collector must be installed, operated, and -
maintamed in accordance with the spccifncations and dcad]iﬁes set forth in
this CAFO a.n-d Exhibit A to this CAFO, Which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Install, operate, and maintain a continuous monitoring systern 10 measure

pressure drop across the dust collection system. Pressure drop must be

measured continuously during all periods of process unit operation,
including peﬁods of startup, shutdown, and malfﬁnction, and must be
recorded at least once per shift during all periods of operation.

Maintain records of pressure drop readings in a rea&ily reviewable format
onsite for at least n;uo years and readily accessibie for at Jeast five years.
Conduct performance iesting on the dust collector by no later than March
1. 2016. The performance izsting must nclude injet énd outiet tcéting for
particulaie matrer using EPA Reference Method 5 10 datermine the

particulate mater removal efficiency of the dust collecior. Performance
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66.

testing roust also establish a ﬁrcssure drop range across the dust collector
within which the removal efficiency is achieved on a continuous basis. In -.
lieu of performing inlet and outlet testing, Respondent may elect to

conduct only cutlet testing and establish a particulate martter emigsion limit

for the dust collector as well as the pressure drop range across which the

dust collector continuously achieves that emission limit.

Respéndenl must spend at least $165,098 to purchase equipment and install the

new reverse air dust collector.

67.

Respondent must continuously operate the dust collector for at least three year(s)

following its installation and startup.

68.

69.

Respondent certifies as follows:

[ certify that Biuff City Minerals is not required to perform or develop the
SEP by any law, regulation, order, or agreement or as injunctve relief as of
the date that | am signing this CAFO. 1 further cerufy that Bluff City
Minerals has not received, and is not negotiating to receive, credit for the
SEP in any other enforcement action.

I certify that Bluff City Minerals is not a party to any open federal financial

"assistance transaction that is funding or could be used to fund the same

activity as the SEP. I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge and
belief after reasonable inquiry, there is no such open federal financial
transaction that is funding or could be used to fund the same activity as the
SEP. nor has the same activity been described 1n an unsuccessful federal
financial asststance transaction proposal submitted to EPA within two years
of the date that I am signing this CAFO (uniess the project was barred from
funding as statutorily ineligibie}. For purposes of this certification, the term
“open federal financial assistance transaction” refers to a grant, cooperative
agreement, loan, federally-guaranteed loan guarantee or other mechanism
for providing federal financial assistance whese performance penod has not
expired.

EPA may inspect the facility at apy ttme o monitor Respondent’s compliance

with this CAFO’s SEP requirements.



70.  Respondent must maintain copies of the underlying research and data fo.r all
repoﬁs submitted to EPA pursuant to this CAFO. Respondent must provide the docuﬁqcntation
of any underlying research and data to EPA within seven days of EPA’s request for the
information.

71.  Respondent must complete the SEP installation and begin its operation no later
than Deccmbérf&l, 2015.

72, Respondent must submit a SEP completion report 10 EPA no .latf:r than May 2,
2016. This report must contain, at a minimum, the following information:

2, Detailed description of the SEP as complzted:;
“b. Description of any installatiou,l_opcratiom or maintenance problems and
the actions taken to correct.the problems;
c. Ttemnized cost of goc;ds and services used 1o complete the SEP documented
by copies of invoices, purchase orders, or cancelled checks that

specifically identify and itemize the individual cost of the goods and

sErvices,

d. Certification that Respondent has completed the SEP in compliance with
thus CAFO;

e. Description of the eavironmental énd public health benefits resulting from

the SEP (quantify the benefits and pollution reductions, if feasible): and
f. The final performance test report for the reverse air dust collector

conducted in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 632,

N
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73. Réspondent must submit all notices and I;epons required by this CAFO by firsi-
class mail to the Compliance Tracker of the Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch
and Robert H. Smith at the addresses provided in Paragraph 60.

74.  TIneach report that Respondent submits as provided by this CAFO, it must certify
that the report is true and complctc by including the following statement sigr-lcd by oné of its
officers: |

I certify that | arn familiar with the information in this document and that, based
on my inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the information, it is
true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I know that there are significant
penalties for subitting false information, including the possibility of fines and
imprisonment for knowing \'1olat10ns

75.  Following receipt of the SEP completion report described above, EPA must notify
Respondent in writing that:

a. It has satisfactorily completed the SEP and the SEP report;
b. “There are deficiencies in the SEP as compieted or in the SEP report and
_ EPA will give Reépondent 30 days to correct the deficiencies; or
c. it has not satisfactorily completed the SEP or the SEP report and EPA will
s;aek stipulated penalties under Paragraph 77.

76. I EPA exercises option b above, Respondent may object in writing to the
deficiency notice within 10 days of réceiv'mg the notice. The parties will have 36 days from
EPA’s receipt of RcsPOﬂdent’s objection 10 reach an agreement. If the parties cannot reach an
acreement, EPA will give Respondent a written decision on its objection. Respondent wili
comply with any requirement that EPA imposes in its d;ecision. If Respondent does not complete
the SEP as requirsd by EPA’s decision, Respondent will pay stipulatsd penalties o the United

States under Paragraph 77, below.



77.  If Respondent violates any requiresnent of this CAFO relating to the SEP,
Respondent must pay stipulated penalties 1o the United States as follows: |

a Except as provided in subperagraph b, below, if Respondent did not
complete the SEP satisfactorily according to the requirements of this
CAFO, Respondent must pay a penalty of $120,986.

b. If Respondent corpleted the SEP satisfactorily, but spent less than 90

percent of the amount set forth in Paragraph 66, Respondent must pav a
penalty of $30,000.

C. | 1f Respondent did not timety sﬁbmit the SEP completion report,
Respondent must pay penaities m the following amounts for each day afier

the report was due until it submits the report:

Penalty per violation per dav Period of viclation
§500 1¥ through 14% day
$1.000 15% through 30 day
$1,500 31% day and beyond

78.  EPA’s determinations that Respon-dent completed the SEP satisfactorily will bina .
Respondent.

79.  Respondent must pay any stipulated penalties within 135 days of refl;eiving EPA’s
writien demand for the penalties. Respondent will use the method of payment specified in
Paragraphs 59 and 60, above, and will pay interest and nonpayment penalties on any overdue
ATOUNtS.

80.  Any public staternent that Respondent makes referring to ‘rhe SEP must include
the following language: “Bluff Citv Minerals undertook this projeci under the settlement of the
United States Environunental Protection Agency’s enforcement actiop agaimst Biuff City

Minerals for violazions of the Clean Air Act”

EJ
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81.  For federal income tax purposes, Respondent will neither capitalize into inventory
or basis, nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the SEP.

General Provisions

82.  This CAFO resolves only Respondent’s liability for federal civil penalties for the
. violations alleged in this CAFO.

83.  The CAFO does not affect the rights of EPA or the United States to pursue
appropriai¢ imunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violation of law.

84.  This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with the CAA
and other applicable federal, state, and local laws. Except as provided in Paragraph 82 of this
CAFO, compliance with this CAFO will not bc: a defense to any actions subsequently
commenced pursuant to federal laws administered by EPA.

85.  Respondent certifies that it 1s complying fully with the Clean Air Act and Illinots
SIP.

86.  This CAFO consti'tutes an “enforcement response” as that term is used 1 EPA’s
Clean Air Act -S!ation.a}'y Civil Penzlty Policy to determine Respondent’s “full compliance
historv” under Section 113(e) of the CAA, 42 US.C. § 7413(e).

87.  The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors, énd its assigns.

88.  Each person signing this consent agreement certifies that he or she has the
~ authority t0 sign for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party 1w its terms.

89.  Tach partv agrees to bear Iis 0Wn costs and attomeys fees in this action.



90.  This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

Bluff City Minerals, Respondent

=
e Y

;- fA 4
P | IS
411 zeis \ 1, Cl &
Date - o Dale C. Heette, Vice President
Bluff City Minerals

United States Environmental Protectlon Agency, omplamant

/.
h3/)¢ /j 3 (//1

Date d - George T,

Direc % I\./“l
Air and Radiation Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
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Consent Agreement and Final Order
In the Matter of: Bluff Citv Minerals
Docket No. CAA-05-2015-0029

Final Order
This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective
immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes this

proceeding pursuant 1o 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED.

. Y
Susan Hedman

Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 3

Y73~ zors

Date

2
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CAA-05-2015-0029

EXHIBIT A

Specifications for the Installabon of a Reverse Air Dust Collector

- as a Supplemental Environmental Project

A As a Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP}), Respondent will install a

reverse air dust collector to capture emissions from its VSI Crusher No. 291219, Cone

Feed Bin #3, and conveyor transfer point from Conveyor #4 to Conveyor 45, located at

the Alton, lllinois facility.

B. The following schedule shall apply to this SEP project:

1. No later than 30 days afier the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent

must submit all necessary permit applications for the installation and operation of

the dust collector.

2. No iater than 60 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent

must;

(a)
(®)

(©)
(d)

()

Receive bicis for the project;

Review the bids;

Choose a bid; and

Submit a purchase order for all major equipment components
necessary for the construction, installation, and mainienance of the

new dust collecror.

No later than 180 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent

must receive all major equipment components for installation of the dust

coliector,



4. No later than December 31, 2015, Respondent must complete insta]iation

of and startup of the new dust collector.

5. No later than March 1, 2016, Rcspondcn‘.[ must conduct performahce

testing of the new dust collector in accordance with Parégraph 63.e. of this

CAFO.

6. No later than May 2, 2016, Respondent must submit a SEP completion

report in accordance with Paragraph 72 of this CAFO.
C. . Respondent must submit quarterly reports to U.S. EPA descﬁbin g the status of its
compliance with the schedule in Paragraph B (1-6) of this Appendix. The first report
must be submitted no later than 30 days after the end of each reporting calendar quarter
(i.e. reports must be submitted April 30, 2015, July 30, 2015_: October 30, 2013, and
January 30, 2016), beginning 60 dayvs after entry of this CAFO. fhe reports shall inc:.]ude
all relevant information necessary o show compliance with the schedule in Paragraph B
(1-6) of this Appendix, and any other requirements established in this CAFO in relation
to SEP activities. The quarterly réports must, at a minimurm, include the following
information.

1. Report #1, submitted no later than April 30, 2015:

. (a) Copies of all bids received to date inchiding the name of the
individual or company supplying the bid and the date the bid was
recelved by Respondent;

(t) A wiitien statement jdentifying the bid(s) accepied by Respondent;

. (<) A copy of the purchase order(s) submitted by Respondent for the

equipment. The order(s) shall categorize all major equipment
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components purchased and the costs of each piece of equipment
(i.e. duct work, fan, monitors, bags, etc.); and

If the information required for this report has already been
submitted, Respondent must submit a jetter referencing the specific

informaticn and date it was submitted,

Report #2, submitted no later than July 30, 2015:

(a)

(b)

(c}

@

A list of any major equipment components received to date
associated with this projccf;

The status of any major equipment components not received to
date;

The anticipated date of receipt of any fnajor equipment
components not received to date; and

A list of any activities done in preparation for this project (i.e. any
pre-construction activities that have occurrad to date, permit

applications submitted, etc.) and the dates such activities occurred.

Report #3, submitted no'later than October 30, 2015:

(a)

A summary of any major equipment cofnponenls received,
including but not limited to reJevant information regarding.the
design and operational specifications of the high-efficiency jet
puise dust collectior sysiem proposed‘for installation as required

bv Paragraphs 64 - 66 of the CAFQ;

A summary of the dates each piece of equipment was received; and
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(c)  Alistof any activities done in preparation for this project to date
(not including those subr;ﬂittcd with Report #2) and the dates such
activities occurred.
4. Report #4, submitted no jater than January 30, 2016:
(a)  Date installation of dust collector was completed;
(b) Date of startup of dust collector; and
(c) Description of any in‘stailaiion, Operation, or maintenance
problems and the acn'_ons taken to correct the problems.
D. In connection with this dust collection system SEP, Respondent shall apply for all
necessary pernits to stall and permits to operate. Each underlying perhlit obtained for
purposes of the dust collector instailation must include the removal efficiency (or
emission limit for particulaie matter if appropr_iate) and the pressure drop range
established during performance testing as federally énforccable permit ierms and

conditions.



In the Matter of: Biuff City Minerzals, Alton, Illinois
Docket Number: CAA-OS—ZUlS'Uﬂzg

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I cerdfy that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final
t ' . . '
Order, which was filed on M /,/7 / m?[j/ 5/ . this day in the following
o

manner to the addressees:

Copy by Certified Mail

Return-Receipt Requested: Dale C. Hoette
Vice President
Bluff City Minerals
4007 college Avenue
Alwon, Illinois 62002

Copy by E-mail to
Complainant: . Robert H. Smith
- smith.roberthii@epe.cov

Copy by E-mail to
Regional Judicial Officer: Ann Covle

covle. annfdiena. cov
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¢ Ufﬁ)a\}n Whitehead

Remdnal Hearing Clerk
U.5. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3
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